o U, WN PR

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

Town of Charlotte
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
February 12, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Development Review Board

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis,
Brandon Tieso, Doug Paton.

Staff: Aaron Brown, Zoning Administrator.

OTHERS: Frank Tenney, Paul Plante, Lauren Nealy.

Posted Agenda:
7:00 PM Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)
7:02 PM Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)

7:05 PM DRB-25-03-BA Thurgate-Sterling Homes —public hearing - Request for a boundary
adjustment of 1,640 SF at 131 Higbee Rd. and adjacent lot.

7:30 PM DRB 22-218-CU TOC Recreation — reconfirmation — Installation of removable access
ramp at 1371 Lake Rd.

7:40 PM Deliberations on closed applications (if any)

8:00 PM Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, January 22, 2025

8:05 PM Markup & Approve Draft Decisions and Sketch Letters: DRB 24-179-SK Leary/LaBerge

8:15PM Agenda for joint meeting with DRB/PC/CCC

8:25 PM Update DRB Rules of Procedure

9:00 PM Adjourn

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Charles Russell called the meeting to order at 7:00pm.

CHANGES TO AGENDA:

Brandon Tieso said he would like to be recused from DRB 22-218-CU TOC. Tieso is a
Recreation Commission member and will represent the committee at the hearing. There was no
objection to this. Russell noted that he had not had the opportunity to update the Development Review
Board (DRB) Rules of Procedure as discussed during the January 22" meeting and suggested that the
agenda item be tabled until the February 26™ meeting.

Public Comment: None.

DRB-25-03-BA Thurgate-Sterling Homes —public hearing - Request for a boundary adjustment of
1,640 SF at 131 Higbee Rd. and adjacent lot.:

Russell asked about any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest. Gerald Bouchard said
he is an abutter and recused himself. Russell swore in Lauren Nealy and Gerald Bouchard.

Nealy spoke to the proposed Boundary Line Adjustment. The applicants propose to swap 1,640
square feet of land. The reason for the swap is to build a shared driveway (between Sterling Homes and
abutter Shane Wright) while minimizing tree removal. Both applicants would retain the same amount of
acreage.

Alexa Lewis asked if boundary line adjustments necessitate building envelopes. Aaron Brown
read from Land Use Regulations (LURs) which indicate that building envelopes are required with the



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

page 2 Development Review Board 02/12/2025

establishment of a proposed lot. Frank Tenney asked why the seemingly simple application to swap
square feet of land is triggering a discussion about building envelopes. In response to this, Nealy stated
the intent of the boundary line adjustment is to preserve areas of high public value. Consensus from the
DRB to not require building envelopes.

Bouchard referred to the letter written by the Conservation Commission Letter. Bouchard asked
about a statement within the letter, cautioning the applicants that the 85 Old Higbee Road lot includes
Highest Priority Landscape. Bouchard asked what Highest Priority Landscape is. From review of the
letter, it was determined that this referred to Geological Priority.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Brandon Tieso, to close DRB-25-03-BA Thurgate-
Sterling Homes. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried. Gerald Bouchard was recused.

DRB 22-218-CU TOC Recreation — reconfirmation — Installation of removable access ramp at
1371 Lake Rd.:

Russell asked about any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest. Brandon Tieso recused
himself. Russell swore in Brandon Tieso and Frank Tenney, Selectboard Vice Chair.

Russell reviewed background information. Aaron Brown’s staff report makes note that the
improvement might have been unnecessary because the project is an ADA improvement. Over two years
have passed since the approval, and the Town has not yet installed the access. The Town is seeking to
re-affirm the original decision.

Lewis asked if the Agency of Natural Resources (ANR) permit also requires renewal. Russell
pointed out that the previous decision outlined the need for ANR review to obtain a permit. Brown
reviewed materials from the ANR permit, which did not include an expiration date.

Tieso spoke to why the project had been delayed, including a loss of grant funding. Tenney said
he supports the re-affirmation and agreed that funding and a significant increase in the ramp material
costs have delayed installation.

Russell noted that in the Staff Report there is a suggestion to re-affirm with no expiration date.
Lewis pointed out that expiration could prompt completion of installation. Tieso agreed that an
expiration date might encourage action.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to close DRB 22-218-CU TOC
Recreation. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried. Brandon Tieso was recused.

Deliberations on closed applications (if any):

DRB-25-03-BA Thurgate-Sterling Homes:

Bouchard remained recused for deliberations.

Doug Paton asked why building envelopes were discussed during the hearing as potentially
required but decided against. Russell referred to Brown’s earlier point that the application does not
propose any new lots. Lewis added that one intent of building envelopes is to protect areas of high
public value, which the applicants are already doing.

DRB 22-218-CU TOC Recreation:
Tieso remained recused for deliberations. No further discussion.

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, January 22, 2025:
MOTION by Gerald Bouchard; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to approve the DRB meeting
minutes for January 22, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

Markup & Approve Draft Decisions and Sketch Letters: DRB 24-179-SK Leary/LaBerge:



96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

page 3 Development Review Board 02/12/2025

Russell asked that the letter clarify that the existing accessory dwelling unit on lot 2 will become
the primary dwelling with the subdivision.

Lewis said the applicants had agreed to a boundary survey and asked that be included to ensure
existing buildings meet setback requirements.

Lewis asked if guidance should be given regarding the relative size of building envelopes.
Russell proposed a statement that building envelopes are generally 1 acre. Bouchard pointed out that lot
1 has a barn that couldn’t be included with a 1 acre building envelope. Russell suggested allowing a
larger building envelope to accommodate. Lewis said that including the barn in the building envelope
would allow the applicant to add on to the barn provided they did not go any further into the setback.
Paton favored excluding the barn from the building envelope with a waiver. Brown proposed the
following statement to address concerns: With the exception of the historic barn, the building envelope
should be drawn to include existing structures, meet setback requirements, and include any area where
future buildings are planned. The DRB found this to be acceptable.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Brandon Tieso, to approve the Sketch Letter for
DRB 24-179-SK Leary/LaBerge, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

Agenda for joint meeting with DRB/PC/CCC:

Russell reviewed the Charlotte Conservation Commission (CCC) agenda items and summarized
them as protection of forest blocks and connectivity; state statutes found in Act 171. Russell said that the
Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission (CCRPC) would be helpful in this discussion.
Russell inquired if CCRPC staff could attend the joint meeting, and CCRPC staff Kate McCarthy
responded that she is not available for the joint meeting.

Lewis suggested a discussion of priorities that will be approached while updating the Town Plan.
To this, Russell said that the DRB enforces LURs, the Planning Commission is responsible for
developing.

Russell noted that a recent case involved prime agricultural soil and how it would be helpful to
have more criteria on this. This led to conversation about the need to prioritize areas of high public
value.

Lewis proposed coordination between state and town permitting.

Brown asked if the agenda items that had emerged are (1) criteria for prioritizing areas of high
public value and (2) coordination of regulatory review processes. The DRB confirmed.

Russell said that Transferrable Development Rights (TDR) are on the CCC’s proposed agenda
item list. This led to discussion about a potential forest bank.

Lewis suggested further discussion and guidance for building envelopes.

Brown proposed topical agendas for joint meetings and areas of high public value being the topic
for the upcoming meeting.

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 5
ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 8:50pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted:
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary with edits by Aaron Brown




